ATA

Vil.

EUREKA TOWNSHIP
Dakota County, State of Minnesota

AGENDA
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
July 2, 2024 - 7:00 P.M.

Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of the Agenda

Permit Requests
Jackson, Jacob, 24090 Holyoke Path, PIN 13-24660-07-060 *Building permit/pavilion

0ld Business
Night to Unite
1. Assign primary contact
2. Create plan
3. Keep or reschedule Planning Commission monthly meeting

Home extended business, Commercial and Agritourism.
1. Reminder of working session, July 11th, 2024, at 7:00pm

Fire number signs-status

New Business
ALAAC meeting summary-Vice Chair Eilers

Approval of Meeting Minutes

June 4, 2024, Planning Commission Meeting
June 18, 2024, Planning Commission Public Hearing

Adjournment

A quorum of the Town Board may be in attendance. No Town Board discussion or action will be taken.

You can join the Zoom Meeting one of the following ways:

1. Navigate to https://zoom.us/j/31343769877pwd=V3VRRkjKbiUxeUY1el]BdmVNUmUrdz09

Meeting ID: 313 437 6987
2. One tap mobile: dial 1-312-626-6799, 3134376987#




Permit
Request




E““EKA BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION

T“WNS“' Eureka Township /25043 Cedar Avenue, Farmington MN 55024
Phone: (952) 469-3736 / Email: deputyclerk@eurekatownship-mn.us
i # Permit#
SITE INFORMATION | Eureka Township PIN ig‘a‘vﬂp(ol}— 07— 0L 0 ermi _
H . o 3 ] N 4\-5" ] 1 . . N
Site Address'ﬁz@‘@?@ ;’wgzﬁé} ég.a(s‘%i& City Lfk\"\ef\" He_’ Zip 5 SD Lf W
PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION B i L R o
Name. IncoB INCKSerd Ema”(,a@'\‘q: b_jake \ackS:d@%.‘_ Phon’%% (-%47-1[Ae
Address ‘8\ L[O qo H Oi\{o ke ?ﬁ‘\’\\ City LA vi(le StafESN Zip 250 4L
APPLICANT/CONTRACTOR INFORMATION
Applicant Name 5 M"\e License Number
Contact Person Email
Address City State Zip
Cell Phone Day Time Phone Fax

TOWNSHIP / LOCAL GOVERNMENT .~ - 2

Permit complies with the Wetland Conservation Act subject to the following conditions:

Hoy- 01
2 Date

[ pakota County Shoreland/ Letter or Permit gVermillion River Watershed/ Letter m lelals )}\,,1
PLEASE INDICATE PROJECT TYPE PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING FOR NEW HOME AND AS NEEDED
[Z( Residential or 1 Commercial / Industrial O Signature from Township on Building Permit Application
[J New Home Construction [0 Private Dog Kennel [ Building Plans (Cross Section, Elevations, Floor Plan) — 2 copies
[0 Deck [0 Public Utility Structure [0 Heat Loss, Combustion Alr & Make-up Air Calculations— 2 copies
X Accessory Bldg/Pole O Signs* [0 Energy Certificate - 2 copies
Shed
1 Remodei O Govt Bldg/Facility* [] Driveway Permit (Required for access to State, County, Twp. Roads)
1 Demoilition [1 Church/Religious Bldg* [J Survey / Detailed Site Plans — 2 copies
J swimming Pool [1 Solar Energy* [0 Erosion and Sediment Control Plans
1 Moving a Building [0 Communication Tower* | [0 Complete Septic Design
[ Aircraft Hangar * CUP also required [J New Home Checklist
[0 Other:

Estimated Cost of Labor & Materials:
29,000

Project Description:

Pav ‘L‘v-[\/ ‘rof Spar‘} fo w;vr
Applicant hereby agrees that, upon issuance of this permit, all work shall be done and all materials used shall be in compliance with all
applicable township, city and county ordinances. The applicant agrees to abide by all zoning regulations and to utilize this structure for its
permitted use. Signature of this application by the legal property owner or owner’s representative is required and authorizes the Township
Zoning Administrator or designee and the Building Official or designee to enter upon the property to perform needed inspections. Entry may be
without prior notice,
| The property owner agrees to pay all plan review fees even if he/she chooses not to proceed with the work. Permit expires when work is not
, commenced within 180 days from date of permit, or if work is suspended, abandoned or not inspected for 180 days. Work beyond the scope of
; this permit, or work without a permit or inspection will be subject to penalty.

Signature of Property Owner: ,ﬂ;ﬁﬁﬁo Date: K/\\j 24

1|Page /’;f Revised: 9/13/2022




SUPPLEMENT TO ACCESSORY STRUCTURES PERMIT APPLICATION
(MUST be included when applying for permit)

¥

{
: . L
1. Dimensions of new structure 5o £ IU equals__ @ © 00 square feet.

2. Floor structure: D?C—F’

3. Method of attachment to ground: CONCMJ'@— Fosters & poed® Lots

4. Wall construction information: _%d on

5. Roof structure information: __ME 5L

6. Total area of all existing accessory buildings (excluding Agricultural buildings): L’i 4 Ho

7. The dimensions {length and width) of all accessory buildings are on the site map:

8. Distance from property lines:

Y el

7 pe H

. o - D
Side 1 R Side 2: Gh o (T

Rear: \ 66 %:‘* Road center line: Zkgo g”t’

9. Closest distance of new structure from primary residence: 3o ”ﬂ’

SAMPLE SITE PLAN: (NOTE: Distances should be in relation to the proposed building or structure)

)

-
33

1 so0ft L

500 ft

270 ft

Township Avenue

3/13/2024




EUREKA
TOWNSHI

BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION

Eureka Township /25043 Cedar Avenue, Farmington MN 55024
Phone: (952) 469-3736/ Email: deputyclerk@eurekatownship-mn.us

P

Sighature of Contractor:

Date:

The property has an existing: 0O cup

Applicant is requesting a 60-day extension until:

oup 3 Nonconforming registration

pd

Deputy Clerk: MVWV;Q("?V) Ub{’/f‘g

Date: b lé’_’}M

1 Complete Date:

Notes:
Zoning Administrator:

Application Fee $ 490  Paid on (ol\(i)l M

O Incomplete Notification sent:

Receipt # 16441 Check # Cledd card 47

Date:

Planning Commission:

Date:

Recommendation to Town Board:
Notes:

0O Approve

O Deny

vo. 154441

Date UJH )9“4

H
3 Guie o |
| ‘E City / Township of ___‘
| §
H Eil Received from Tacol  JdaLlbspr~
|3 .
I Eﬂ«ha? HI ard %01100"‘— Dollars
L . ( L
7 %1 For ‘P:un&f(né Mm‘j‘ - Q&mm\S’M}:h\)‘C CQ?P“CZJ’&Y\ v&%
b0 gt Gl By Sty WL LbelTeen
11 ) ( ) Authorized Signatire
—" —emaw IO L
Building Permit S
-State Surcharge $ Code Used:
Plan Review $ - .
Penalty / Other $ Building Sprinkled nYes o No
2|Page

Revised: 9/13/2022




. PpropertyCard

Parcel ID Number 13-24660-07-060 t

Fee Owner
JACOB JACKSON
AMANDA JACKSON
Matllng Address -
24090 HOLYOKE PATH

LAKEVILLE MN 55044

Address
24090 HOLYOKE PATH

Mudieipality -

EUREKA TWP

ale Tota cres

MSalevalue $O 00 ’ RIW Acres
Uses RESIDENTIAL Water Acres ) -
Plat EUREKA ESTATES 1ST ADD

Lot and Block o 67

LOT 6 BLK 7 & COMMON AREA BEING OUTLOT B
& OUTLOT C EX PT BETWEEN NE'LY & SW'LY

Tax Description  LINES OF LOT 4 BLK 7 & ABAN CMSTP&P RR
CONTAINED WITHIN EUREKA ESTATES 18T ADD
EXPTADJTOLOT 4 BLK7

Building Type S FAM.RES [Year Built Bedrooms
Building Style  ONE STORY fFoundauon SqFt 1,575 Bathrooms 4. 00
Frame WOOD " AboveGradeSqFt 1961 GarageSqFt 1,026
Mumple Bundmgs iFlmshed SqFt 3,373 o Other Garage "

‘ Watershed District ' Open Space

VERMILLION RIVER

Homestead
FRACTVIONAL

Green Acres | Ag Preserve |

!
i
i
i
i

Taxable Estlmated
2024 Land Values (payable 2025)  $106,200.00 ' $106,200.00
2024 Building Values (payable 2025)* $612,400.00 $612,400.00
2024 Total Values (payable 2025)* $718,600.00 ” . $718,600.00
2023 Total Values (payable 2024)* ’ ’ $727,900.00 ’ $727,900.00

Net Tax (payable 2024)
§7.264.00

Total Tax & Assessments (2024)
§7.284.00

* Manufactured Homes Payable the Same Year as Assessment.

Parcel data current as of 06/12/2024 Dakota County, MN Page 1 of 2




Io 7\ ole Path

JE
B %

]

Iocuﬂ G

@/ﬂw & Nw‘_ o ie//\ o ﬂm\ ﬁuw/&ﬁ

$
2 o?




Eureka Township Deputy Clerk

From: Dunn, Jeff <Jeff. Dunn@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US>

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 1:24 PM

To: Eureka Township Deputy Clerk

Subject: RE: VRWJPO Approval: Pavilion/sport court -24090 Holyoke Path
Yes, 24-01.

Jeff Dunn, Water Resources Engineer

Vermillion River Watershed Joint Powers Organization
Dakota County Extension & Conservation Center

4100 220th St W, #103, Farmington, MN 55024
952.891.7140 | jeff.dunn@co.dakota.mn.us
vermillionriverwatershed.org

Vermillion River
w at e < h e d
reflecting lite

From: Eureka Township Deputy Clerk <deputyclerk@eurekatownship-mn.us>
Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 1:08 PM

To: Dunn, Jeff <Jeff.Dunn@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US>

Subject: RE: VRWJPO Approval: Pavilion/sport court -24090 Holyoke Path

Thanks Jeff and will do!

Do you happen to have a Watershed and Land Disturbance Permit # that | can include on his Eureka Township
Building Permit application?

Sincerely,

Amy Liberty

Deputy Clerk

Eureka Township

(952) 469-3736
deputyclerk@eurekatownship-mn.us

From: Dunn, Jeff <Jeff.Dunn@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US>

Sent: Wednesday, June 26, 2024 8:16 AM

To: Eureka Township Deputy Clerk <deputyclerk@eurekatownship-mn.us>
Subject: VRWJPO Approval: Pavilion/sport court -24090 Holyoke Path

Good morning, Amy




This email serves as notification that Jake Jackson has been approved for a Watershed and Land
Disturbance Permit for the construction of a 50'x40' outdoor pavilion space at 24090 Holyoke Path. Pleas
let me know when the Township Board has approved the Building Permit so that | can make
arrangements with the owner for installation of sediment and erosion control practices prior to any work
being done.

Thankyou,
Jeff

From: Eureka Township Deputy Clerk <deputyclerk@eurekatownship-mn.us>
Sent: Tuesday, June 25, 2024 12:59 PM

To: Dunn, Jeff <Jeff.DUunn@CO.DAKOTA.MN.US>

Subject: Pavilion/sport court -24090 Holyoke Path

WARNING: External email. Please verify sender before opening attachments or clicking on links.

Jeff,

| am not sure if the citizen reached out to you about the project that he would like to do on his property.
Attached is the application and a site map. As always, | truly appreciate your time looking at Township
items that fall in the Vermillion Watershed area!

Have a great day,

Amy Liberty
Deputy Clerk
Eureka Township
(952) 469-3736

deputyclerk@eurekatownship-mn.us




Old
Business



poLels 10N 9ouUBUIPIQ Sienenbg
/passed sem 1eyi uolie)sise) mau
uo uonewloiul Asuiolie 10} SUILEBAA poe1els 10N sigeuue)
si1ueld 91gissod pue soiel 3810 2
}Ing 1noge aiinbuj ‘sajonb ule1qo 3e10 Ainde |1 ssd.804d Uy sSuBig SS8IpPPY LL6
‘U0ISSBS MIOM L L AiNfayl 01 81141015 uelg "2
uoliewnolul Sulg pue suyep Alasdold 2I1101g alURIBN "L ssaJgoud uf WISLINOIZY

"UOISS8S MIOM L L A\ 8yl 01
uoljewioful ulq pue suyap Aliadold

8]1101S 8lUBIBIN T
epAaH ueq-i

ssaugoud uj

1810480

"U0ISSOS I0M L L AiNf 8yl 01
uollewlolul 8ullq pue suyap Ausdold

sigg yieg ‘¢
1Sinbuned ueaouoq "1

ssasgold uj

ssaulsng pepusixg sWoH

AN( 40 w7 dul Jeye ‘AneoidA] -o1e ‘ell
‘gonod Joj dn udis 01 MOPUIM LIOUS

ssaugoud uj

81un 011YSIN

S910N

10B1U0D AlepuU029Sg T
1oeUON Alewilid L

sn1els

Jsel

layoel] 10801 uoissiwwo) suluueld




¥20¢/ve/9 palepdn

paiisjeg 2.NNNoLBY 100pu|
‘uiege passnosip
SI Siyl Usym psiiilou ag 03 831 PInom pue
21d01 SIU3 Ul Pa1salalul USZRID B S] 818yl
ue1dwod jewlol oN -uoneondde iejos
psunow-punol8 e 3ulnp pPaIsA0dsIq pa.Lisjeq pJeA 1uoly e JO uoniuleq
pattsjed suoneywi 8uipiing Aossa00y

SASVL ALIHOIdd MOl




New
Business




MEMORANDUM

TO: Eureka Township Supervisor Board

Eureka Township Planning Commission Board
FROM: Planning Commissioner Eilers
RE: June 2024 ALAAC Meeting

On June 13, 2024 | represented Eureka Township at the ALAAC meeting
as the appointed ALAAC Liaison. The meeting was held at Lakeville City
Hall.

A presentation was conducted by the Civil Air Patrol based out of Airlake
Airport and a discussion followed regarding the request to change the radio
channel assignment for the Airlake airport t0123.075. This channel is
currently available for assignment. The current channel assigned to Airlake
Airport is extremely busy for a variety of reasons. Following the discussion
the request received an approval vote and Sam Seafeldt, airport manager,
was requested to process the change of radio channel assignment request
with the appropriate authority.

Sam provided an update regarding Airlake Airport. He stated that the south

“taxiway end of runway lights are being replaced on June 215, Runway
crack sealing project will be completed in July during the evening hours so
as to not necessitate the closing of the airport. The airport maintenance
building is being replaced at the same location it is at now with construction
commencing this summer. Ongoing work is being done to deal with the
water drainage challenges of buildings and other locations on the airport
property. He advised that there was nothing new to report on the runway-
extension plan. He also reported that the MAC Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Operations Officer have had a few meetings in Chicago regarding the
runway extension. He felt this implied this was still on the agenda of the
MAC.

It was reported that operations at Airlake Airport have increased this year
by 150 and that there were zero complaints. Although it may appear
different on the books as there was one complaint that involved another
airport, but because the aircraft operations originated from Airlake it has a




complaint connection to Airlake Airport. This specific complaint was made
by a resident near the Anoka/Blaine airport regarding a helicopter.

There was a discussion held regarding Recommended Practices for Noise
Abatement. It was pointed out that these are not rules, but rather
guidelines for voluntary compliance. The recommendations included
discouraging touch and go's and Stop and go’s as well as other similar type
operations are discouraged during nighttime hours. It was also noted that
every pilot must be certified in these types of flying operations at specific
intervals during the year. Additionally, low level flyovers are also to be
avoided. The recommended location for maintenance run-ups was the
southside of the airport near ALOFT Aviation building. There was an
objection to this by the ALOFT Aviation representative who felt this location
was a long distance from the location where the maintenance of aircraft
actually occurs. It was agreed that runups of more than 5 minutes would
be conducted on the south side of the airport, all others would be done at
the maintenance facility location.

Airlake Airport manager Sam Seafeldt reported the following events taking
place at the airport:

e Experimental Aircraft Association fly-in breakfast on June 16
7:30-11:30. This will take place at the ALOFT Aviation hangar on
south side of airport

e Lakeville Airport Tennant BBQ will be held on June 17

e Pan-O-Prag Lions Club Fly-in breakfast on July 7" 7:30-11:30
This is open to the public and will be held at the ALOFT Aviation
hanger on the south side of the airport. Will include commemorative
aircrafts, will have aviation booths and jets for business charter flights
on display. A shuttle service will be utilized again to transport visitors
from the parking areas to the event location.

The meeting was adjourned.




Minutes
for
Approval




EUREKA TOWNSHIP
Dakota County, State of Minnesota

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES
June 4, 2024-7:00pm

Call to Order
The Planning Commission meeting was called to order at 7:00pm by Chair Melanie Storlie
and the Pledge of Allegiance was given.

Commissioners Present: Melanie Storlie (Chair)
Beth Eilers (Vice Chair)
Donovan Palmquist (Commlssmner)
Dan Heyda (Commissioner)
Brian Storlie (Commlsswner)

Others Present: Amy Liberty (Deputy Clerk), Nancy Sauber, Patrick Mahowald Brett Haan,
Adam Lipold :

Zoom participants: Julie Larson

Approval of the Agenda

Motion: Chair Melanie moved to approve the agenda Comrmsswner Palmquist seconded.
Motion carried 5-0.

Permit Requests

Hallcock, Wayne, 5975 280th St. W, PIN 13- 03500 76-010, *Addition

Brett Hahn of BH Development was representing Wayne Hallock and was able to clarify the
site map and the scope of the project. A concern was addressed with the measurement
from the structure to the centerline of Hwy 86. Commissioner Palmquist was able to access
Dakota County GIS and determined the project does meet setback requirements. Mr. Hahn
also agreed to re-submita rev1sed site map to the Deputy Clerk showing the measurement
as 128 ft. ~

Motion: Chair Melanie Storlie moved to recommend to the Board that we move forward
with the permit for PIN 13-03500-76-010 for Wayne Hallcock for an addition for a
bathroom to his property. Commissioner Brian Storlie seconded the motion.

Motion carried 5-0.

Beissel, Kevin & Rudi, Jeff, XX 255t St. W., PIN 13-02400-51-015, *New Construction

Due to the grade of the land, it was recommended to extend the silt fence in the back of the
property, including by the primary septic site. The exact location of the well is yet to be
determined; however, an approximate location is listed on the site map and is 50 feet from
the house. They are using the same company to install a septic system and a well, instilling
that the requirements and setbacks will be met.

1|Page




Motion: Chair Melanie Storlie moved that we send this on to the Town Board for approval
for PIN 13-02400-51-015, for building a new residence at the address 255t St. W.
Commissioner Palmquist seconded. Motion carried 5-0.

0Old Business
Permit Application and Directions Review-Accessory Solar Energy Systems

Motion: Vice Chair Eilers moved to submit the Accessory Solar Energy Systems permit
application to the Town Board for approval. Commissioner Palmquist seconded.
Motion carried 5-0.

Town Board Meeting Liaisons/Revised

May 14, 2024 Brian Storlie -
June 11, 2024 Melanie Storlie
July 09, 2024 Brian Storlie
August 14, 2024 (Wednesday) Beth Eilers
September 10, 2024 Donovan Palmquist
October 08, 2024 Melanie Storlie -
November 12, 2024 | Beth Eilers

-Donovan Palmqu'ist
Beth Eilers

December 10, 2024
January 14, 2025

February 11, 2025 ',Donovan,PVaImqui'st'
March 12, 2025 (Wednesday) Brian Storlie
April 08, 2025 - Dan Heyda

New Business

Public Hearing

e Date set for June 18t at 7:00pm

e - Commissioners discussed the previous procedures document and agreed to a three
(3) to five (5) minute time for public comments, depending on the number of
speakers on the list.

Town Board Recommended Projects
The Planning Commission reviewed the list recommended by the Town Board and
determined the following as highest priority:

1. Nightto Unite

2. Home Extended Business, Commercial, and Agritourism

The Commissioners felt it was important to properly define home extended business,
commercial and agritourism and agreed combining these together is too big of a task. They
decided to break down this project into separate categories, assign a lead and co-lead to
conduct research and meet at a work session scheduled for Thursday, July 11t at
7:00pm. Commissioner Palmquist is tasked with home-extended business, Vice Chair
Eilers assisting, Commissioner Heyda will present information on commercial business,
with Chair Melanie Storlie assisting. Chair Melanie Storlie also agreed to lead the research
on agritourism, with the help from Commissioner Brian Storlie.

2]Page




The Commissioners continued to discuss the list given by the Town Board and agreed to
move the Squatters Ordinance up to a high priority and have Cannabis move to the lower
priority list, since there is no new legislative action. These remaining items will be
discussed at future Planning Commission meetings.

For Night to Unite, Vice Chair Eilers commented that the window to sign up with the
County to reserve the police and fire departments is not until mid-July. Further action will
take place at the July Planning Commission meeting.

Approval of Meeting Minutes
Motion: Chair Melanie Storlie moved to approve the meeting minutes from our May 7t
meeting. Vice Chair Eilers seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0.

Adjournment
Motion: Chair Melanie Storlie moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Palmquist
seconded. Motion carried 5-0.

Meeting adjourned at 8:52pm

Respectfully submitted,

Amy Liberty, Deputy Clerk

Minutes Officially Approved by: _ 2 . on:
: - Planning Commission Chair Date

3|Page




EUREKA TOWNSHIP
Dakota County, State of Minnesota

PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING
June 18, 2024-7:00 PM

Call to Order
The Planning Commission Public Hearing was called to order at 7:00pm by Chair Melanie Storlie
and the Pledge of Allegiance was given.

Commissioners Present: ~ Melanie Storlie (Chair)
Beth Eilers (Vice Chair)
Donovan Palmquist (Commlssmner)
Brian Storlie (Commissioner)
Dan Heyda (Commissioner)

Others Present: Amy Liberty (Deputy Clerk), William Rueter, Brian & Tami Johnson, Andre
Stouvenel, Valerie Britton, Paul Ulmen, Nancy Sauber, Bill Clancy, Linda Ripley, Jeff Otto, Mark
Ceminsky, Timothy Pope, Paul & Deb Burkhardt, Randy Wood, Ken Olstad, Mike Patterson, Ray
Hall, Julie Larson, Bob & Mary Dawson, Glenn Benson, Colleen Riley, Don Pflaum

Zoom Attendees: Carol Cooper, Ralph Fredlund, Christen Fuller, Shelleys iPad-Air-2, Jeff’s iPad,
“Guy Fawkes”

Opening Statement

Chair Melanie Storlie opened the meetmg at 7:00pm, shared the procedures and the expected
conduct of this public hearing and stated the following:

The purpose of this meeting is to consider amendments to the Township Code, Chapter 240
Zoning, pertaining to Agricultural District: Conditional Uses and Structures and Definition of
Agritourism. The text amendment was brought forward by a citizen for the Township to consider.

Before the applicant could make a short statement regarding their text amendment request,

a Point of Order was called to Madam Chair. It was stated that an error in procedure occurred, and
the Public Hearing should no longer continue. Chair Melanie Storlie allowed Jeff Otto, the citizen
who raised the question of order, to share his concern.

Mr. Otto voiced that this hearing was improper and invalid as it directly violated Eureka Township
Ordinance 57-2, making it illegal. He referenced the Ordinance and pointed out the wording,
“Notification shall be given by first-class mail to all owners of record with the Dakota County
Department of Property Taxation of land located in the Township at the time the application was
filed with the Town Clerk” He verified with the Town Clerk earlier that a first-class mailing was not
initiated. He advised the Planning Commission to pass a motion explaining this circumstance to the
Town Board and have the Public Hearing rescheduled after proper notice has been provided.

Deputy Clerk Liberty listed a timeline of notices that were conducted, mentioned the Town Clerk
did seek legal counsel prior to setting this Hearing date and shared practices of past Eureka
Township Public Hearings where no post cards or mailings were sent. Further investigation

1|Page




conducted by the Clerks found mention in past meeting minutes that the Board had determined
to follow only the statutory requirements. Deputy Clerk Liberty suggested that this matter be

addressed at the next regular Town Board meeting. Vice Chair Eilers pointed out, “although this
is up for interpretation, the ordinance does say, ‘the failure of such notice to reach any resident,

so long as the notice was attempted by the Town, shall not invalidate the proceeding’.
The Commissioners decided to move forward.

Bill Rueter of Endurance Farm Partners, representative of the applicant Kathy Parranto, was
present at the Town Hall to address the Planning Commission and answer any questions they
may have.

Public Comment

Chair Melanie Storlie opened the public comment period, directing the Deputy Clerk to read the
submitted written comments from citizens not in attendance and then call on citizens who have
signed up on the Speakers List in the order listed until everyone has spoken.

Submitted Comments read by the Deputy Clerk
Atina Diffley, 25498 Highview Ave.
Dear Members of the Eureka Town Board,

[ am writing to express my enthusiastic support for the proposed ordinance change adding agri-tourism to
the list of conditional uses in Eureka Township currently under consideration. As a resident of Eureka
Township, I believe that the implementation of this ordinance will bring significant economic, social, and
cultural benefits to our community.

Agri-tourism, the intersection of agriculture and tourism, offers a unique opportunity to diversify our local
economy and support our farming community. By opening up our farms to visitors, we can showcase the
rich agricultural heritage of Eureka, provide educational experiences about farming practices, and create
new revenue streams for our farmers. This, in turn, helps to sustain family farms, promote local products,
and enhance our rural way of life.

The benefits.of agri-tourism.are numerous:

Economic Development: Agri-tourism can stimulate the local economy by attracting tourists who spend
money on local accommodations, dining, and other services. This influx of visitors supports not only the
farms but also other local businesses. It also provides new employment opportunities, giving our youth
the chance to access jobs in the summer that will enrich their lives. It also provides opportunities to
diversity income streams making Eureka township farms more resilient to weather and market impacts.

1. Preservation of Agricultural Lands: By generating additional income, agri-tourism can help keep
farmland in active production and prevent it from being sold for non-agricultural uses. This helps
maintain the rural character and scenic beauty of our community.

2. Education and Community Engagement: Agri-tourism provides educational opportunities for
both residents and visitors, fostering a greater understanding and appreciation of agriculture.
Activities such as farm tours, u-pick operations, and workshops can engage the community and
create meaningful connections between farmers and consumers.

3. Cultural Enrichment: By celebrating our agricultural heritage, we can preserve and promote the
traditions and skills that have shaped our community.

2|Page




Utilizing the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) process will allow farmers to plan and invest in infrastructure
with clear guidelines that will help minimize impact on neighbors. Including agri-tourism as a CUP activity
also provides protections for neighbors and other community members who may be impacted by the
operation. Neighbors will have a process to influence impacts during the CUP process.

In conclusion, I strongly urge the town board to adopt the agri-tourism ordinance as a permitted CUP
activity. This forward-thinking initiative will not only bolster our local economy but also strengthen our
community’s ties to its agricultural roots. Thank you for considering my perspective and for your
dedication to the prosperity of Eureka Township.

Sincerely,

Atina Diffley

Ken and Jill Olstad, 8000 257th West

To the Eureka Planning Commission, and whom it may concern,

I hereby submit, for the record, input for the 2024-06-18 public hearing on the proposed ordinance text
amendment regarding agri-tourism, on behalf of myself, Ken Olstad, and my spouse, Jill Olstad, Eureka
township residents since 1998, :

We are in favor of agri-tourism insofar as it is truly an accessory use to the primary land use of agriculture
(as defined in Minnesota statute and Eureka's ordinances), but we are not in favor of uses that are not
directly related to the actual primary agricultural use of the property. In this case, that's growing apples.
The activities that this orchard has done for the last few decades, those of which we are aware, are
already permissible under current code. The proposed text amendment is not needed. It is overly broad,
to a ridiculous degree, giving no meaningful boundaries to what would be considered "agri-tourism". We
should not have language like "including but not limited to..." followed by a vague and broad list that
could include anything including the kitchen sink. The definitions would need to be tightened up
considerably, for this change to be anything but a Trojan horse for virtually any activity or use whatsoever
to be considered "agri-tourism". As regards Conditional Use, the language should include extensive
examples of the kinds of Conditions that would be appropriate, so it's clear to the reader and especially

to future boards and planning commissions what sorts of activities are intended to be included and
excluded, to help in defining reasonable conditions protecting health and welfare of the residents.

A new conditional use, is a big decision, and needs much more care and discussion than this slapdash
proposal is getting, Please do not adopt it, but rather, take the required effort to do it right, if it's even
needed at all. ~

We agree fully with Jeff Otto’s excellent work on this subject.

Sincerely,
Ken and Jill Olstad

3|Page




Speakers List

Kathleen Kauffman, 25506 Ipava Ave.
Kathleen shared her concerns and submitted the following:

Comments of Kathleen Clubb Kauffman on proposed amendment to Eureka Ordinance 240.7(C)
adding to section 2 definitions of the terms Agritourism and Agritourism Infrastructure.

] welcome the inclusion in our ordinances of provisions related to Agritourism.

I have three points
1. The definitions of Agritourism must be tweaked to precisely (with the possible exception
of “ranch”) track Stat §604A.40. (Link attached)
2. We need to define the term “Ranch” if we continue to use it.
3. We need to add an ordinance provision for applying for an Agritourism Interim Use
Permit.

L The proposed definition of Agritourism activity needs to be tweaked so that it precisely
tracks Minnesota law.

Minnesota has enacted a law that shields those who run agritourism business from liability to the
members of the public who comes to participate. The definition of the covered activity is contained in
Minnesota Stat. §604A.40 -

"Agritourism activity" means activity carried out on a farm or ranch that allows organizations or
members of the general public, for recreational, entertainment, charitable, or educational
purposes, to view, enjoy, or participate in rural activities, including, but not limited to: farming;
viticulture; winemaking; ranching; and historical, cultural, farm stay, gleaning, harvest-your-own,
or natural activities and attractions. An activity is an agritourism activity whether or not the
participant pays to participate in the activity.

I have highlighted below the words added in the proposed language before the Planning Commission.

PROPOSED LANGUAGE WITH DIFEERENCES NOTED
An activity carried out on a farm or ranch that allows organizations or members of the general
public, for recreational, entertainment, charitable, or educational purposes, to view, enjoy, or
participate in rural activities, including, but not limited to: farming; viticulture; winemaking;
ranching; farm markets; freshly made and packaged food and beverage; and historical, cultural,
recreational, farm stay, gleaning, harvest-your-own, or natural activities and attractions including
but not limited to: site related and agritourism related retail; educational programs; fire pits; hay
pyramids; corn mazes; games and sports; mechanical and non-mechanical rides; camping; arts and
crafts; music; and markets. An activity is an agritourism activity whether or not the participant
pays to participate in the activity.

If Eureka deviates from the state definition, the liability protection at a minimum is called into question
and may be lost. As a lawyer, the differences read to me like a member of my profession trying to include
a “kitchen sink” list for a future that may never happen and is likely covered by the general statute
language in any case. This new language puts in peril protection from liability and gains nothing I can see.
The property that prompted the proposed amendment has a long history of selling food and hosting site
related attractions that were consistent with Eureka ordinances without amendment. There is no added
benefit to including “camping” in addition to “farm stay” unless the owners were planning on opening a

4|Page




KOA campground (which would not be Agritourism for many reasons). Whether music and rides are
appropriate is a site specific question appropriate for a detailed IUP, not a general definition. The right to
include these activities for Board consideration and regulation in an IUP application is sufficiently covered
by the very broad terms already in the state statutory definition.

The laundry list included in the definition is also detrimental to petitioners because the industry will
continue to evolve. The proposed language lists every activity that petitioners might currently ever want
to include, but there will surely be more activities created in the future that are not on the list. The
principle of expressio unius est exclusio alterius means that activities not on the laundry list are not
permitted. The petitioners are better off with a general definition into which new activities will fit.

I1. We need to define the term “Ranch” if we use it in the definition of Agritourism.

The term “Ranch” is not currently defined in the ordinances. | thinkwe can safely drop the term even
though it is used in the state statute. Counsel should be consulted.

ML We need to add an ordinance provision for applying for an Agritourism Interim Use
Permit.

Special uses in the Township can be permitted under either a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) or an Interim
Use Permit (JUP). Counsel should be consulted, but I believe currently the best practice for buildings
outside of general rules is to use a CUP and for activities outside of general rules the best practice is to use
an IUP. For instance, all of our new mine permits are IUPs. Our attorney can explain it better than I can,
but I believe the thinking is buildings, being permanent, need rights the run with the land; while activities,
which may change, stop, or require more oversight are better handled by an Interim Use Permit. Activities
are also more likely to have changing impacts on the community. If the activity is covered by an IUP the
Board can be responsive to all citizens: The Board has more limited ability to be responsive with a CUP.
Whatever the path, the ordinance should be amended to reflect the process. Currently IUP’s are covered in
Ordinance 165 and in Ordinance 240. Your attorney can advise on whether a standalone section similar to
Ordinance 165 should be added or something should be added to Zoning near §240-19. Whatever is added
today will be short and can reference the standards §240-32. If | were on the Board (which I am not) the
[UP would renew at the end of two years when it would be updated to be consistent with the Township’s
current ordinance. The Township is moving very fast and I know from first-hand experience that is when
mistakes get made. The Township should meet the needs of this citizens with the changes suggested above
and then give itself some room to do some deeper thinking.

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/ statutes/cite /604A.40

Tulie Larson, 24510 Highview Ave.

5{Page




Julie read the following:

J—

’ ,Wﬁ i /Janﬁ SOF) o O U Y e e e

! -y . ‘ o
/V}y fi"(z@‘?«fi’& r"»zi;?/ [,)\fl/@ry e

O / »l; “hr O / 7‘//"64 e R
; {/}

. S
3 LV S aney

Lo

/f Vo iF S F, /‘1 e f[ LA

;j///\ e C/{J")Y V{“{'s b 3" A

/

}W ONVE

& £ "’ L o .
{ ?i’,:a; v (oo ey { #7 Tl (SR aeTid //) P EYs g

S pro
]/ - 5 : / " Lo - ) -
aSlow  adod of Comrmercia) de ved AL 0 Y

¥

. . i : C~7 . )
Wl ‘“!’A“ (A"xLl ( s’% e MG e o l‘ o "7’/"“3)

1
oun b
%, \/‘/ -7,,”) (f’%:/«w

- , -
S {f\ (f\‘,f{“\ Q& \{‘) "%}‘,’\ J C;‘/ o %

6|Page




&2 f{?‘ Ly f? f,/

z/{,’t / }g‘f 2. /;:(:! Yy /.’”5" ¥

. . P i §
(A e SO L S Fy
Fbt e Fr Rt S YL L1473 T VN

Nancy Sauber, 9445 225%h St. W,

Nancy wanted to start her time by stating that she agreed with Mr. Otto. The fact another Town
Board in the past didn’t properly provide notice of a public hearing is no excuse to not follow the
written ordinance.

1.

As a horticultural use, Applewood Orchard can do what it has always done withouta Conditional
Use Permit or CUP.

The presentation submitted to the Township gives the Minnesota State definition of Agritourism. It
is fairly broad as it is.

Eureka could adopt all, some, or none of this definition into its zoning as we have that authority.
The proposed definition language adds terms like "mechanized rides,
related retail," "music," and all of these are wide open, if not unclear. "Music" could mean someone

rural activities," site-

7|Page




quietly strumming a guitar by a campfire, or it could mean a rock concert. No limitations are given
at all. Why add these terms if one doesn't intend to use them at some point in the future? Why not
be upfront about your expanded definition in the pre-submitted presentation and point out those

added terms and your reasons for including them?

5. Once the language would be enacted, Eureka MUST allow CUPs to any applicant whose application
fits this very loose, broad-based definition. Any conditions placed are limited. Some Eureka Boards
have placed NO CONDITIONS on some CUPs in the past! Denial of a CUP or trying to attach
conditions that go beyond "reasonable, related and proportional” is not possible without likely
repercussions. Many court cases that Eureka has and could be involved in would stem from CUPs
and IUPs. Denial would most likely end in the Township losing a lawsuit as we have said in our
Ordinance that we DO allow such uses.

6. CUPs "run with the land" and do not go away unless grossly violated and not brought into
compliance. CUPs transfer with the land from owner to owner.

7. This use is probably better addressed in a stand-alone Ordinance with performance standards and
specific limits.

8. It is inappropriate for the Board to indicate support for an applicationin a public meeting before
the process has been completed as was just done at the last Town Board meeting. Supervisors are
supposed to remain neutral until AFTER the public hearing and the Commission
recommendations. ‘

9. By scheduling their special meeting to address the text amendment for this coming Thursday, the
Board is hamstringing the Commission in doing its job properly. Your work can be life-altering for
our citizens. Please consider this carefully and do your job responsibly.

Thank you.

Bill Clancy, 25511 Ipava Ave.

Public Hearing 6-18-24-Executive Summary: We need a compromise to allow Applewood
Orchards to continue to operate with reasonable limited expansion of activities to generate
sufficient revenue for new owners while remaining Low Impact to the community,

1-Applewood Orchard as operated by the Parranto family for a long time is a valued asset to both

our and the broader metro community. Agritourism as elegantly and expertly described by Mrs.
Diffley in her letter is valuable. Unfortunately operating the Orchard exactly as done by the Parranto
family is NOT the issue nor request; it is about "creating new farm-based traditions for guests" per the
proposed buyers.

The term Agritourism has now become so broadly defined it means ANY activity where tourists can enjoy
recreation or entertainment, or consumption or any ATTRACTION or education related to farming AND
OR a rural setting. Now anything you do in an open field in a rural setting is

Agritourism. Like at Rock Ranch, now Legacy Ranch with 35 different rides including towers for ZIP Lines
and train rides like at Disney World.

What started as selling apple pies and jellies, with corn maze or small tractors for the kids or cutouts for
photo opportunities all as supplemental farm income is not good enough for private equity firms to invest
in a family farm .... they need a higher return on investment via more activities to attract more tourists.
More customers to generate more revenue.

Yes, the Parranto parcel is in a perfect location for the existing operation as pointed out with "no
adjacent residences, ... north is airport ... east is airport, south is farmland, west open farmland.”

8|Page




2- Other locations across the Township are not so insulated- The zoning change opens up ALL of
Eureka Township to Agritourism. A Zip Line and any other rides or commercial attractions bringing
customers to spend money affects other citizens quality of life and property when it appears down the
road or across the street at a new location. Text amendment as written far too broad.

3- Other unintended commercial operations - Just using the word "historical” in the State of

Minnesota definition would allow me to convert my Pole Barn into a display of my large collection of
antique farm equipment and charge admission. I could also partner with one or more of the large
collectors of Farm Tractors which we all enjoy seeing in the various local parades .....I can even build
unlimited amount of Ag Building with no size limit and turn it into a year-round tourist destination. And
for any of you who attended the entertainment under the large black and white Circus tents in north
parking lot of Mall of America ...... can set up the Circus on my front five acres Spring, Summer and Fall, not
having to take down and setup Circus tents and operating in a Rural setting will be very attractive to the
commercial operators.

4- Beware new Euphemisms ... such as the expanded definitions of Agritourism. Euphemisms are
defined as a mild or indirect word substituted for one considered too harsh or too blunt. Corporate
America used to do job cuts but then did downsizing and most recently rightsizing. You still had no job.

Citizens want Applewood Orchards NOT a local Valley Fair or Wisconsin Dells with an 0ld McDonald's
Farm theme located anywhere across the Township.

Thank you. Bill Clancy

Jeff Otto, 25580 Dodd Blvd. o

Jeff began by saying the efforts the Parranto family have carried out for a quarter of a century are
wonderful and the orchard is a nice enterprise. The concern is not with this specific application,
but rather with the very open and broad language submitted.

To Planning Commission Members:

Some of you may be aware that [ made a public comment at the Tuesday 6/11/2024 Board Meeting
expressing the unfairness and inappropriaté push by the Board to rush the Agritourism Text Amendment
through without allowing a realistic opportunity for the Commission to evaluate public input and
recommend any text adjustments. The Board has a Special Meeting scheduled only a day and one-half after
the 6/18/2024 hearing at 1pm 6/20/2024.

I have been active in Eureka Township for 17 years in various volunteer roles and served as Board Chair 2
years of my three-year term. | led a 2009 team that described the proper recognition of Grandfathered
housing rights for the first time in spite of the rules existing at the State level that should have been
properly described in Eureka ordinance since April 12, 1982. 1 chaired the Housing Rights Transfer Task
Force and was the primary architect of the ordinance. I have provided free training for Eureka staff over
the years on Eureka’s unique zoning. I also spearheaded a major update and clarification of the Zoning
ordinance 2021-2023 based on our experience since its 2013 implementation. I also designed and
programmed a database of all Eureka properties and populated the database with analyses of every
property as to housing right status, possible grandfathered rights, and permits of various types approved
over the years.

The Agritourism amendment text is the most poorly written and potentially damaging to residents’
property values and quality of life ever proposed. The text is extremely open ended as to what could
qualify. As I stated to the Board, first in line is a new owner planning to continue the 25-year legacy of the

9|Page




Parranto apple orchard operation. That appears to be a worthy continuation of a wonderful community
asset. The problem is the amendment text that could potentially allow far more impactful activities
anywhere in the Township to the detriment of property owners. More of this will be presented at the
hearing. Given the extremely short time allowance for Planning Commission consideration of public input
and your own thoughts, I have attached two documents for consideration. *

The “Agritourism Activity Edited” document is offered as a time-saving draft suggesting better language to
try to resolve some of the most egregious loopholes in the proposed amendment.

The second document, “2024-05-13 AgriTourism excerpt...” is a far more thoughtful and carefully
constructed ordinance created by the AgriTourism Task Force in 2013-14 over several months of
consideration. This document is the full 2014 proposed text for a “Chapter 10” and its page numbers
simply reflect that this was part of a recent larger “packet” file for the 5/13/2024 joint Roundtable
Meeting with the Board. Mr. Parranto himself was a key member of the 2013-14 Task Force. It had been
through the amendment process, but the Board then dismissed it as unnecessary at the time. [t is time to
seriously reconsider it and it is ready to progress. ‘

I encourage you to recommend the clearly more thoughtful and citizen-protecting language of the 2014
draft proposal. .

You of course certainly may wish to also progress an edited version of the current amendment proposal
for the Board to choose from. | hope you will indicate your preference for the clearly more thorough 2014
version. f

This will put the Planning Commission on record as standing for fairness and property values for ALL the
residents of Eureka Township.

Thank you for your consideration.
Respectfully,
Jeff Otto

*Please note: The documents mentioned are attached to the end of these meeting minutes.

Randy Wood, 23775 Essex Ave.

Randy thanked the Commissioners for holding the meeting, however he did not want this to be a
“fast-track” process. There was an agricultural task force formed years ago and perhaps this
should be implemented again to have more citizen involvement. Allowing mechanical rides and
the impact on the roads are of concern.

Don Pflaum, 5256 225% St. W.

Don offered the one thing he has learned from Eureka Township politics, “if it isn’t painful, it isn’t
right.” He is unsure if this is good or bad but feels that there needs to be more discussion. Test out
some scenarios before a decision is made.

Kathy Parranto, 22702 Hamburg Ave.

The owner of the apple orchard spoke of the agritourism that already takes place on the property.
Apple picking, school tours, etc., The property does not have a CUP. Kathy questioned if there is a
need to add an agritourism ordinance since they have been doing things all along, since day one,
without asking the Township. It never has been an issue. When they felt there was too much
traffic on the roads, they created their own signs to have control, again no issues. If an
agritourism ordinance is truly needed, do it simply.

10| Page




Debbie Burkhardt, 24235 Highview Ave.

Deb shared that she lives next store to a wonderful family that has goats, sheep, ducks and
chickens on their property. It is not believed that they are going to have school buses pull up, but
there would be concerns about where they would park and if the roads could handle the traffic
and other liability issues. She also noted that the IRS considers agritourism as a commercial
activity, not a farm enterprise.

Paul Burkhardt, 24235 Highview Ave.

Paul feels the Applewood Orchard is a great business and an asset to the community. The
Ordinance, however, is hasty and ill-advised as written. “Not limited to” opens a can of worms for
everybody.

After Chair Melanie Storlie asked three times if there were any other comments, the public
comment portion of the Public Hearing was closed at 8:07pm.

The Planning Commission began discussion, which resulted in the following:

Motion: Planning Commissioner Palmquist moved to recommend to the Board that they issue an
IUP to Applewood Orchard to continue to do everything that they have been doing there. To table,
work on the text amendment until it can be vetted and presented to the community in a more clear
and tangible way. Vice Chair Eilers seconded. Motion carried 5-0.

Findings of Fact will be composed and presented to the Town Board on June 20th, 2024.

Motion: Planning Commissioner Palmquist moved to adjourn the meeting. Chair Melanie Storlie
seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0.

Public Hearing ended at 8:40pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Amy Liberty, Deputy Clerk

Minutes Officially Approved by: on:
Planning Commission Chair Date

11|Page




Lubmited \Ok@
Jef4 oo

EUREKA TOWNSHIP
DAKOTA COUNTY, MINNESOTA
Ordinance No.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 240 OF THE CODE
OF THE TOWN OF EUREKA REGARDING AGRITOURISM

The Board of Supervisors of the Town of Eureka ordains:

Section 1. Agricultural District. Section 240-7(C) of the Code of the Town of Eureka is hereby
amended by adding a new use to the list of conditional uses as follows:

(13) Agritourism activities. including associated agritourism infrastructure.

Section 2. Definitions. Section 240-64 of the Code of the Town of Eureka is hereby amended
by adding new definitions as follows:

AGRITOURISM ACTIVITY
An Accessory activity carried out on property whose primary use is active farming er
raneh that allows organizations or members of the general public, for recreational,
entertainment, charitable, or educational purposes, to view, enjoy, or participate in rural
farmine related activities, including butnetlimited to: farming; viticulture; winemaking;
ranching: farm markets: freshly made and packaged food and beverages; and historical,
cultural. recreational, farm stay, gleaning, harvest-your-own, or natural activities and
attractions including but-netlimited to: site related and agritourism related retail;
educational programs: fire pits: hay pyramids; corn mazes; games and sports; mechanieal
and non-mechanieal farm tour rides; single night camping; arts and crafts; smusie; and
markets. Ap-activity is an asritourismactivity whether or not the participant payste
participate inthe activity. All activity must be of low impact in terms of noise, dust, traffic
congestion, lichting, and visual appearance compatible with the Eureka Township

Comprehensive Plan.

AGRITOURISM INFRASTRURCTURE
Includes—butisnotlimited-te. utility services, parking, buildings, kitchens, fixtures,
sisnage. bathrooms, storage, tents, seating areas, canopies, landscaping, workshops,
fencing. hardscape, and offices in service to an agritourism activity. All infrastructure must
be of low impact in terms of noise, pollution, dust, traffic congestion, lighting, and visual
appearance compatible with the Eureka Township Comprehensive Plan.

Section 3. Incorporation of Amendments. The Town Attorney and Town Clerk-Treasurer are
hereby authorized and directed to incorporate the amendments made by this ordinance, and any
previous amendments that have not been incorporated, into the Code of the Town of Eureka,
including updating the table of contents and making non-substantive corrections as may be
needed. Such updated document shall constitute the Town’s official Code of the Town of
Eureka.




Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon the first tenth day of
publication after adoption,

Adopted onthe  day of 2024.

BY THE TOWN BOARD

Pete Storlie, Chairperson
Attest:
Liz Atwater, Clerk-Treasurer

New material is shown in double underlining and deleted material is shown in strikeeut.

Edits in this version are red strikethrough for deletions and yellow highlight for additions.



gLJomH%(’A b«@f
Jeft ot1o
ORDINANCE 10;: AGRITOURISM

CHAPTER 1: TITLE

This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the Township of Eureka Agritourism Ordinance,
except as referred to herein as “this Ordinance.”

CHAPTER 2: PURPOSE
The purpose of this Ordinance is to protect the public health, d welfare through the
following:

A. Establish permitting requirements and performan ritourism and
agricultural direct-market business.

ations to conduct Agritourism
hile preventing or minimizing
and the community as a whole.

CHAPTER 3: DEFINITIONS

A. Agricultural Operati

B. Agricultural T
A seasonal or ye

tor. This use may include but is not limited to, pick-your-own
ands, farm fishing, and similar businesses.

public, invited groups, or visitors on a farm upon which commercial agricultural operations
are currently being conducted for the purpose of economic enhancement, education,
enjoyment or active involvement in an agricultural use. Activities must be related to
agriculture and accessory to the agricultural use on said property. Agritourism shall not
include activities that include the discharge of firearms, competitions among motorized
vehicles, or other events that the Township determines to be incompatible with the
community’s character or intent of this chapter

D. Farm.

20




As defined in Ordinance 1, Chapter 4 of Eureka Township Ordinances.
E. Non-Agricultural Products.
F. Operator.
Operator is any person or persons, partnerships, corporations or assignees engaging in

commercial agricultural operations.

G. Town Board.
The Board of Supervisors of Eureka Township.

H. Township.
The Township of Eureka, Dakota County, Minnesota.

I Zoning Administrator.

As defined in Ordinance 1, Chapter 4 of Eureka ynship Ordinances.

J. Zoning Ordinance.
The Eureka Township Zoning Ordinance.

CHAPTER 4 - PERMITTED USES

Subject to full and complete compliance w
uses are Permitted Uses and structures in the

andards set forth in this Chapter, the following
ultural District:

Section 1 - Agritouris

below:

ch the Agritourism use is located shall be at least ten
1 be accessory to the agriculture use of the parcel.

under thi
become t

nce should be secondary to the agricultural operation and should not
nary use of the property.

3. All Agritourism use shall comply with the regulations contained in Ordinance 3, Chapter
4, Section 1, and with all Township Ordinances applicable to commercial uses and
nuisances, specifically, Ordinance 5, Chapter 4, sections 1 — noise and nuisances, 2 —
odors, 3 — toxic matter, 4 —exhaust emissions, 5 — lighting, 6 — miscellaneous nuisances.
(Resolution 59, 8-13-2007), and the Township’s Noise Ordinance #2011-5.

21




4. All structures, including temporary structures, shall meet the minimum setback
requirements of the zoning district. All buildings used in conjunction with the use
shall meet the requirements of the State Building Code.

5. Activities may not begin before 7 a.m. and must be completed by 10 p.m.

6. A structure may include a kitchen for proper assembly, service and storage of food
catered from another location. Any on-site preparation and handling of food or
beverages must comply with all applicable federal, state or local standards. The
full-scale preparation of food, a restaurant, bar, or othe fined commercial food
preparation activities are not allowed. Limited food preparation may be completed
on site. A kitchen for the purpose of producing ded food ploducts from
farm products such as jams, jellies, pickles, pizza, [

items, which are directly connected t
sandwiches, salads, snacks, pizza, and ot

Lemmons)

14.  The Agritourim use does not result in visitors of more than 100 people daily on a
weekly basis.

Section 2 - Agricultural Direct-Market Business

Agricultural Direct-Market Business if said use and structures comply with all standards set forth
below.

22




l. The majority of the product sold on the property shall be grown or raised on the
property.

2. An Agricultural Direct-Market Business may use up to 100 square feet of retail
display floor space of the business to sell non-agricultural products. Non-
agricultural products may only be sold during periods that agricultural products are
also sold.

3. No sale of product shall take place on any County/Township Road or right-of-way.

All Agricultural Direct-Market Business Use shal ly with the 1egulat10ns

sections 1 — noise and nuisances, 2 —odor
5 — lighting, 6 — miscellaneous nuisa

hall meet the minimum setback

5. All structures, including temporary stru
i .used in conjunction with the use

requirements of the zonmg d tllct All bui

6. A structure may include a kit
catered from another locati
bevelages must-c

S allowed Food preparation on 31te is limited to
ctly connected to the Agricultural Direct-Market Business,
hes, salads, snacks, pizza, and other items needed to

9. No external lighting is to be used for the Agricultural Direct-Market Business,
except as required by building code.

10.  The Agricultural Direct-Market Business does not generate more than 30 car trips

per day on a dirt road or more than 75 car trips on a paved road. (Waiting for
response from Attorney Lemmons)

23




If the Town Board finds that any of the standards set forth in Section 1 for Agritourism or
Section 2 for Agricultural Direct-Market Business have been violated, the Operator shall
immediately cease the use. The Operator shall then apply for Interim Use Permit pursuant
to the provisions of this Ordinance. The use shall not recommence until such time as an
Interim Use Permit is issued.

CHAPTER 5: PERMIT REQUIRED

Section 1 — Permit Required

In the event any person, firm, company ot corporation is unable t
standards set forth in Chapter 4, Section 1, or Chapter 4, Secti
person, firm, company or corporation to conduct said Agritour
Market Business activity without first obtaining an
Ordinance. Operating without a Permit will result in_it
Ordinance, which penalties will be strictly applied.

all of the performance
1all be unlawful for said
activity or Agricultural Direct-
rim Use Permit™
sition of penalties

Section 2 — Criteria for Granting Permits

jacent agriculturally or residentially used land so that existing
e depreciated in value and there will be no deterrence to

accessory to the primary agricultural use. (Resolution 59, 8-13-2007)

5. The use is consistent with the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance and the purposes
of the zoning district in which the applicant intends to locate the proposed use.

6. The use is not in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan of the township.
7. The use will not cause traffic hazards or congestion.
8. The proposed use must meet or exceed the performance standards set forth in this

24




Ordinance, as well as the Zoning Ordinances and other applicable Township
Ordinances.

9. If a transfer of ownership occurs and there is not a change in impact to surrounding
properties, the Permit can be transferred to the new owner. If there is a change in

impacts, the Permit shall be subject to a review by the Town Board.

10.  The township has the right to vary hours of activities from the noise ordinance.

CHAPTER 6: PERMITTING PROCEDURE FOR INTERIM US ERMIT

Section 1 — Application

An application for either an Agritourism Permit or an Agr Business Permit

iltural Direct-Mal
shall include, but not be limited to, the following info‘r :

A. Name, address, phone number, contact perso tor and signature of a legally

authorized representative.

B.

C.

D. F e"”property on which the proposed use will be
wned by the land owners.

E.

B. Plans and spe/ciﬁcations for all temporary or permanent structures.
C. Location and specifications of all on-site or portable sewage treatment facilities.
D. Location and specifications of all off-street parking for all employees and visitors.

E. Proposed external lighting plan if required.

25




F. Noise abatement policy.

G. Proposed hours of operation.

H. Total estimated amount of all daily vehicle traffic from workers, visitors, and service
vehicles. This estimate shall also include a description of the estimated average daily and

peak daily number of visitor vehicles.

L. Plans for emergency shelter for all visitors.

ment facilities will be
tect licensed within the

All plans, specifications for permanent structures, and on-site sewa
supported by documentation provided by a registered engineer ¢
State of Minnesota. :

Section 3 — Application Procedure

A. Any applicant applying for eithe1 an Agrito

oning Administrator shall then
review the appllcatlon and if it is fo nd to be incomplete; shall return the application with
written instructions as to additi
application shall not be deemed t
the Zoning Administrator deter
application shall not be considere
including any outstanding fees due to

Township until such time as
n is complete. In addition, an

all then review the application and the Planning Commission’s
conduct a hearing before a final determination is made regarding the

Section 4 — Conditions of Approval

In granting either an Agritourism Interim Use Permit or an Agricultural Direct-Market Business
Interim Use Permit, the Planning Commission may recommend, and the Town Board may impose,
additional conditions for the purpose of protecting the health, safety, morals and general welfare
of the occupants of surrounding lands and water bodies, as well as the community as a whole.
These conditions may include, but are not limited to, the following:

A. Limiting the height, size or location of structures, structures and gathering spaces must be

26




located and designed in such a way as to minimize the impacts on surrounding properties.
If the Agricultural use terminates, the associated structures must be returned, or converted
to a permitted or accessory use, or removed entirely.

Controlling the location and number of vehicle access points, location and number of
parking spaces. Screening may be required to mitigate identifiable impacts to adjacent

residences.

Temporary parking areas may be approved at the sole discretion of the Town Board.

The board may require screening to mitigate identifiable im to adjacent residences

(Ord 2010-1, 6-14,2010).

not be improved, the TUP may be denied
Commission/Town Board may require the applic
issuance of any ITUP. The Town Board may
improvements based on the traffic that may b

The Town Board may require a repre.
all times during events-and activiti

Additional conditions may be imposed by the Town Board to ensure that the proposed use
is compatible with the surrounding land uses.

Section 5 — Review of Permit

Each permit wrote shall be reviewed annually. The operator will, 30 days prior to the anniversary
date of the Interim Use Permit, provide the following information to the Town Board and pay the
review fee established in this Ordinance:

27




A. History of applicant’s compliance with the conditions of this Ordinance, as well as any
conditions contained in the Interim Use Permit issued to the applicant and any other
governmental regulations related to the applicant’s use.

B. History of any complaints received by the applicant regarding the use and what steps the
applicant took to address said complaints.

C. All information in the applicant’s possession dealing with average daily vehicle count and

peak daily vehicle count.

D. Evidence that insurance is still in force and effect.

E. Any change in ownership and/or operator. This sh
the land, which is subject to the permit.

in ownership of

F. Other items of information requested by the

rovided by the operator, and the
iance with this Ordinance and the

; original Interim Use Permit shall apply. The
1 Interim Use Pelmits issued pursuant to this

NCE STANDARDS
formance Standards

The following pe ance standards apply to all Agritourism permits issued by the Township:

A. The minimum parcel on which the Agritourism use is located shall be at least ten (10) acres
in size. The use shall be accessory to the agriculture use of the parcel.

B. Any Agritourism use must maintain its demonstrated agricultural relationship and at no

point shall the use of the property be converted to, or operated as a stand-alone business or
industrial use.

28




All Agritourism use shall comply with the regulations contained in Ordinance 3, Chapter
4, Section 1, and with all Township Ordinances applicable to commercial uses and
nuisances, specifically, Ordinance 5, Chapter 4, sections 1 — noise and nuisances, 2 -
odors, 3 - toxic matter, 4 -exhaust emissions, 5 - lighting, 6 - miscellaneous nuisances.
(Resolution 59, 8-13-2007), and the Township's Noise Ordinance #2011-5.

All structures, including temporary structures, shall meet the minimum setback
requirements of the zoning district. All structures used in conjunction with the use shall
meet the requirements of the State Building Code.

Activities may not begin before 7 a.m. and must be complet

age of food catered
*or beverages must

comply with all applicable federal, state or loca
food, a restaurant, bar, or other defined commz
allowed. Limited food preparation may be co
producing value-added food products from

such as pies, sandwiches, salads
typical events as permitted on th

o parking on public roads and adequate setbacks from adjacent
king areas must be at least 10 feet out of the road right-of

Farm stays do not have more than two sleeping rooms. Farm stays was removed in Chapter
4 — it was item 13, but was not removed in this section.

29




Section 2 — Performance Standards for Agricultural Direct-Market Business

The following performance standards apply to all Agricultural Direct-Market Business uses in the

Township:

A. The majority of the product sold on the property shall be grown or raised on the property.

B. An Agricultural Direct-Market Business may use up to 100 square feet of retail floor
display space of the business to sell non-agricultural products. Non-agricultural products
may only be sold during periods that agricultural products are-¢

C.  No sale of product shall take place on any County/Township right-of-way.

D. All Agricultural Direct-Market Business Use shall ¢
in Ordinance 3, Chapter 4, Section 1, and with all
commercial uses and nuisances, specifically;
and nuisances, 2 - odors, 3 - toxic matter em1ss1ons 5 - lighting, 6 -
miscellaneous nuisances. (Resolution 59, 8-13-2 he Township's Noise Ordinance
#2011-5.

E. All structures, including tempo; meet the minimum setback
requirements of the zoning district conjunction with the use shall
meet the requirements of the State

F. A structure may i - proper assembly, service and storage of food catered
from another | . ite preparation and handling of food or beverages must

i er ‘or local standards. The full-scale preparation of

commercial food preparation activities are not

e completed on site. A kitchen for the purpose of

roducts from farm products such as jams, jellies, pickles

ods, milk products, pies, jerky or similar products is allowed. Food

items, which are directly connected to the Agricultural

ss, such as pies, sandwiches, salads, snacks, pizza, and other items
ate typical events as permitted on the property

G. the township ordinances apply to this use

H No more than 2,999 square feet of a structure may be open to the public for the Agricultural
Direct-Market Business.

L. No external lighting is to be used for the Agricultural Direct-Market Business, except as

required by building code.

30




CHAPTER 8: TERMINATION, VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES
Section 1 — Termination

Any Interim Use Permit issued pursuant to the terms of this Ordinance shall be terminated on the
happening of any of the following events:

A. The date or event of termination specified in the Interim Use Permit

but only after the Town
ner (if different from
be in compliance with
edy the violation,
se firom Attorney
n notice and

B. Upon a violation of condition under which the permit was issu
Board has first provided written notice to the operator a
the operator) describing the specific violation and steps n
the permit and after having been given a reasonab
but in no case longer than five (5) business days

ill result in a writ
any condition wi
written notice and a misdemeanor. A third viola ny condition will result in written
notice and termination of permit.

C. Each day that a violation conti
constitutes a new violation.

Section 2 — Misdemeanor Penalty

CHAPTERY: E
Section 1 — Inspection

The operator grants the Township, its officers and representatives, access to the facility during
normal operating hours to inspect the facility and enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.

31




CHAPTER 10: LIABILITY INSURANCE

Section 1 — Indemnification
The operator shall hold the Township harmless against all claims by third parties for injuries,
damage or costs related to the activities allowed under the permit. The operator shall indemnify
the Township for all costs, damages, or expenses incurred by the Township arising from such
claims, including attorney’s fees.

CHAPTER 11: VALIDITY

Section 1 — Validity; Severability

Should any provision of this Ordinance be declared by the to be invalid, ¢
not affect the validity of this Ordinance as a whole or any other part thereof, unl
the judgment. Ifthe courts declare the application o ther provisi
individual use, property or structure to be invalid, such jt

said application of any provisions to any other individu , property or structure, unless so
specified in the judgment.

CHAPTER 12: EFFECTIVE DATE

The Effective Date of this Ordinance shall ublication according to law.

32




